# Oshkosh 860 Purchase Order Change Request - Buyer Initiated

AIAG X12/V4010/860: 860 Purchase Order Change Request - Buyer Initiated

**Version: 1.0 Final** 

Company: Oshkosh Corporation

Publication: 9/16/2019

## **Table of Contents**

860	) Pu	rchase Order Change Request - Buyer Initiated	1
	ST	Transaction Set Header	3
	всн	Beginning Segment for Purchase Order Change	4
	PER	Administrative Communications Contact	6
	N9	Reference Identification	7
	DTM	Date/Time Reference	g
	MSG	Message Text	10
	N1	Name	11
	N2	Additional Name Information	12
	N3	Address Information	13
	N4	Geographic Location	14
	POC	Line Item Change	15
	PO4	Item Physical Details	18
	REF	Reference Identification	19
	MSG	Message Text	20
	SCH	Line Item Schedule	21
	TD5	Carrier Details (Routing Sequence/Transit Time)	23
	N9	Reference Identification	24
	MSG	Message Text	26
	N1	Name · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	27
	N2	Additional Name Information	28
	N3	Address Information	29
	N4	Geographic Location	30
	CTT	Transaction Totals	31
	SF	Transaction Set Trailor	33

## 860

## Purchase Order Change Request - Buyer Initiated

## Functional Group=PC

**Purpose:** This Draft Standard for Trial Use contains the format and establishes the data contents of the Purchase Order Change Request - Buyer Initiated Transaction Set (860) for use within the context of an Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) environment. The transaction set can be used to provide the information required for the customary and established business and industry practice relative to a purchase order change. This transaction can be used: (1) by a buyer to request a change to a previously submitted purchase order or (2) by a buyer to confirm acceptance of a purchase order change initiated by the seller or by mutual agreement of the two parties.

#### **Heading:**

_							
<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
010	ST	Transaction Set Header	М	1			Must use
020	BCH	Beginning Segment for Purchase Order Change	M	1			Must use
060	PER	Administrative Communications Contact	0	3			Used
LOOP ID	- N9				<u>1000</u>		
285	N9	Reference Identification	0	1			Used
287	DTM	Date/Time Reference	0	>1			Used
290	MSG	Message Text	0	1000			Used
LOOP ID	) - N1				<u>200</u>		
300	N1	Name	0	1			Used
310	N2	Additional Name Information	0	2			Used
320	N3	Address Information	0	2			Used
330	N4	Geographic Location	0	>1			Used

#### **Detail:**

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
LOOP	ID - POC				<u>&gt;1</u>		
010	POC	Line Item Change	0	1			Used
090	PO4	Item Physical Details	0	>1			Used
100	REF	Reference Identification	0	>1			Used
292	MSG	Message Text	0	>1			Used
LOOP	ID - SCH				<u>200</u>		
295	SCH	Line Item Schedule	0	1			Used
305	TD5	Carrier Details (Routing Sequence/Transit Time)	0	12			Used
LOOP	ID - N9				1000		
320	N9	Reference Identification	0	1			Used
330	MSG	Message Text	0	1000			Used
LOOP	ID - N1				<u>200</u>		
340	N1	Name	0	1			Used
350	N2	Additional Name	0	2			Used

OSK\_X12\_860\_4010.ecs 1 For internal use only

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name Information	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>	
360	N3	Address Information	0	2			Used	
370	N4	Geographic Location	0	1			Used	

## **Summary:**

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
LOOP ID - CTT				<u>1</u>	N3/010L		
010	CTT	Transaction Totals	0	1		N3/010	Used
030	SE	Transaction Set Trailer	М	1			Must use

#### Notes:

- 3/010L Number of line items (CTT01) is the accumulation of the number of POC segments. If used, hash total (CTT02) is the sum of the value of quantities ordered (POC03) for each POC segment.
- 3/010 Number of line items (CTT01) is the accumulation of the number of POC segments. If used, hash total (CTT02) is the sum of the value of quantities ordered (POC03) for each POC segment.

## **ST** Transaction Set Header

Pos: 010 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

Purpose: To indicate the start of a transaction set and to assign a control number

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>		
ST01	143	Transaction Set Identifier Code	М	ID	3/3	Must use		
		Description: Code uniquely identifying a Transaction Set						
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 298, Included: 1)						
		Code Name						
		860 Purchase Order Change Request - I	Buyer In	itiated				
ST02	329	Transaction Set Control Number	М	AN	4/9	Must use		
		<b>Description:</b> Identifying control number that functional group assigned by the originator		•		nsaction set		

# **BCH** Beginning Segment for Purchase Order Change

Pos: 020 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 16

User Option (Usage): Must use

**Purpose:** To indicate the beginning of the Purchase Order Change Transaction Set and transmit identifying numbers and dates

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>			
BCH01	353	Transaction Set Purpose Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use			
		Description: Code identifying purpose of	transacti	on set					
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 65, Inc.	cluded: 5)	)					
		<u>Code</u> <u>Name</u>							
		00 Original							
		01 Cancellation 04 Change							
		04 Change 05 Replace							
		06 Confirmation							
BCH02	92	Purchase Order Type Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use			
<b>Description:</b> Code specifying the type of Purchase Order									
	CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 69, Included: 11)								
		Code Name							
		BE Blanket Order/Estimated Quantities (Not firm Commitment)							
		BK Blanket Order (Quantity Firm)							
		CF Confirmation CP Change to Purchase Order							
		CP Change to Purchase Order  DS Dropship							
		OS Special Order							
		RL Release or Delivery Order							
		RO Rush Order							
		SA Stand-alone Order							
		SP Sample							
		UE Unit Exchange							
BCH03	324	Purchase Order Number	М	AN	1/22	Must use			
		<b>Description:</b> Identifying number for Purch			•	rer/purchaser			
		User Note 1: For a blanket PO, this will contain the c							
BCH04	328	Release Number	0	AN	1/30	Used			
		<b>Description:</b> Number identifying a release the parties involved in the transaction	_		·	iously placed by			
		User Note 1: For a Blanket PO, this will c							
BCH05	327	Change Order Sequence Number	М	AN	1/8	Used			

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
		<b>Description:</b> Number assigned by the order previously transmitted transaction set	erer iden	itifying a	specific chang	e or revision to a
BCH06	373	Date	М	DT	8/8	Must use

**Description:** Date expressed as CCYYMMDD

# PER Administrative Communications Contact

Pos: 060 Max: 3 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 9

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To identify a person or office to whom administrative communications should be directed

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>				
PER01	366	Contact Function Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use				
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying the major do named <b>All valid standard codes are used. (Tota</b>	•		ity of the perso	on or group				
PER02	93	Name	0	AN	1/60	Used				
		Description: Free-form name								
PER03	365	Communication Number Qualifier	Х	ID	2/2	Used				
		Description: Code identifying the type of communication number								
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 40, Incl Code Name EM Electronic Mail	luded: 1)	)						
PER04	364	Communication Number	Χ	AN	1/80	Used				
		<b>Description:</b> Complete communications n applicable	umber ir	ncluding	country or area	a code when				
PER05	365	Communication Number Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/2	Used				
		Description: Code identifying the type of communication number								
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 40, Incl Code Name TE Telephone	luded: 1)							
PER06	364	Communication Number	Χ	AN	1/80	Used				
		<b>Description:</b> Complete communications n applicable	umber ir	ncluding	country or area	a code when				

## N9 Reference Identification

Pos: 285 Max: 1 Heading - Optional Loop: N9 Elements: 7

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To transmit identifying information as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

<u>Ref</u> N901	<u>ld</u> 128	Element Name Reference Identification Qualifier	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 2/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use			
		Description: Code qualifying the Reference All valid standard codes are used. (Total							
N902	127	Reference Identification	Х	AN	1/30	Used			
		<b>Description:</b> Reference information as de specified by the Reference Identification Q		a particu	ılar Transactio	n Set or as			
N903	369	Free-form Description	Χ	AN	1/45	Used			
		Description: Free-form descriptive text							
N904	373	Date	0	DT	8/8	Used			
		Description: Date expressed as CCYYMMDD							
N905	337	Time	Х	TM	4/8	Used			
	<b>Description:</b> Time expressed in 24-hour clock time as follows: HHMM, or HHMMSS, or HHMMSSD, or HHMMSSDD, where H = hours (00-23), M = minutes (00-59), S = integer seconds (00-59) and DD = decimal seconds; decimal seconds are expressed as follows: I = tenths (0-9) and DD = hundredths (00-99)								
N906	623	Time Code	0	ID	2/2	Used			
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying the time. In Organization standard 8601, time can be s relation to Universal Time Coordinate (UTC are substituted by P and M in the codes the <b>All valid standard codes are used. (Total</b>	pecified C) time; s at follow	by a + or since + is	r - and an indic	cation in hours in			
N907	C040	Reference Identifier	0	Comp		Used			
		<b>Description:</b> To identify one or more referspecified by the Reference Qualifier	ence nu	mbers or	identification	numbers as			
N907-01	128	Reference Identification Qualifier	М	ID	2/3	Must use			
		Description: Code qualifying the Reference All valid standard codes are used. (Total							
N907-02	127	Reference Identification	М	AN	1/30	Must use			
		<b>Description:</b> Reference information as de specified by the Reference Identification Q		a particu	ılar Transactio	n Set or as			
N907-03	128	Reference Identification Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/3	Used			
		Description: Code qualifying the Reference All valid standard codes are used. (Total							

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N907-04	127	Reference Identification	Х	AN	1/30	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Reference information as def specified by the Reference Identification Qu		a particu	lar Transaction	Set or as
N907-05	128	Reference Identification Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/3	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Code qualifying the Reference All valid standard codes are used. (Total				
N907-06	127	Reference Identification	Х	AN	1/30	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Reference information as def specified by the Reference Identification Qu		a particu	lar Transaction	Set or as

## **DTM** Date/Time Reference

Pos: 287 Max: >1 Heading - Optional Loop: N9 Elements: 6

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify pertinent dates and times

<u>Ref</u> DTM01	<u>ld</u> 374	Element Name  Date/Time Qualifier	Req M	Type ID	Min/Max 3/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use			
		<b>Description:</b> Code specifying type of date or time, or both date and time All valid standard codes are used. (Total Codes: 1112)							
DTM02	373	Date	Х	DT	8/8	Used			
		Description: Date expressed as CCYYMMDD							
DTM03	337	Time	Χ	TM	4/8	Used			
		<b>Description:</b> Time expressed in 24-hour clock time as follows: HHMM, or HHMMSS, or HHMMSSD, or HHMMSSDD, where $H = hours (00-23)$ , $M = minutes (00-59)$ , $S = integer seconds (00-59)$ and $DD = decimal seconds$ ; decimal seconds are expressed as follows: $E = tenths (0-9)$ and $E = tenths (0-9)$ .							
DTM04	623	Time Code	0	ID	2/2	Used			
		Description: Code identifying the time. In a Organization standard 8601, time can be sprelation to Universal Time Coordinate (UTC are substituted by P and M in the codes that All valid standard codes are used. (Total	pecified ) time; s	by a + or since + is	· - and an indic	ation in hours in			
DTM05	1250	Date Time Period Format Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/3	Used			
		Description: Code indicating the date form All valid standard codes are used. (Total			or date and tim	e format			
DTM06	1251	Date Time Period	Χ	AN	1/35	Used			
		Description: Expression of a date, a time,	or range	e of dates	s, times or date	es and times			

## **MSG** Message Text

Pos: 290 Max: 1000 Heading - Optional Loop: N9 Elements: 3

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To provide a free-form format that allows the transmission of text information

## **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
MSG01	933	Free-Form Message Text	М	AN	1/264	Must use
		Description: Free-form message text				
MSG02	934	Printer Carriage Control Code	Χ	ID	2/2	Used
		<b>Description:</b> A field to be used for the con All valid standard codes are used. (Total			ed of the recei	ving printer
MSG03	1470	Number	0	N0	1/9	Used

**Description:** A generic number

## N1 Name

Pos: 300 Max: 1 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 6

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To identify a party by type of organization, name, and code

<u><b>Ref</b></u> N101	<u>ld</u> 98	Element Name Entity Identifier Code	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 2/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use		
NIOI	30	<b>Description:</b> Code identifying an organizational entity, a physical location, property or an individual						
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 1312, I	ncluded:	10)				
		Code Name						
		BT Bill-to-Party						
		BY Buying Party (Purchaser)						
		MA Party for whom Item is Ultimately Intended						
		MI Planning Schedule/Material Release	e Issuer					
		RE Party to receive commercial invoice remittance						
		SE Selling Party						
		SF Ship From						
		SP Party filling Shipper's Order						
		ST Ship To						
		SU Supplier/Manufacturer						
N102	93	Name	Χ	AN	1/60	Used		
		Description: Free-form name						
N103	66	Identification Code Qualifier	Χ	ID	1/2	Used		
		<b>Description:</b> Code designating the system/method of code structure used for Identification Code (67)						
		<b>User Note 1:</b> AIAG Recommends use of the DUNS Number, however, if no DUNS Number exists, or is unavailable, use code "92".						
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 215, In	cluded: 3	3)				
		Code Name						
		1 D-U-N-S Number, Dun & Bradstree	t					
		92 Assigned by Buyer or Buyer's Agen	t					
		ZZ Mutually Defined						
N104	67	Identification Code	Χ	AN	2/80	Used		
		Description: Code identifying a party or of	ther code	Э				

## **N2** Additional Name Information

Pos: 310 Max: 2 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify additional names or those longer than 35 characters in length

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N201	93	Name	M	AN	1/60	Must use
		Description: Free-form name				
N202	93	Name	0	AN	1/60	Used
		Description: Free-form name				

## **N3** Address Information

Pos: 320 Max: 2 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the location of the named party

## **Element Summary:**

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N301	166	Address Information	M	AN	1/55	Must use
		Description: Address information				
N302	166	Address Information	0	AN	1/55	Used

**Description:** Address information

## **N4** Geographic Location

Pos: 330 Max: >1 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 6

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the geographic place of the named party

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N401	19	City Name	0	AN	2/30	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Free-form text for city name				
N402	156	State or Province Code	0	ID	2/2	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Code (Standard State/Proving agency	ce) as d	lefined by	/ appropriate go	overnment
N403	116	Postal Code	0	ID	3/15	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Code defining international problems (zip code for United States)	ostal zo	ne code	excluding punc	tuation and
N404	26	Country Code	0	ID	2/3	Used
		Description: Code identifying the country				
N405	309	Location Qualifier	Χ	ID	1/2	Used
Description: Code identifying type of location  All valid standard codes are used. (Total Codes: 172)						
N406	310	Location Identifier	0	AN	1/30	Used
		Description: Code which identifies a speci	ific locat	tion		

## **POC** Line Item Change

Pos: 010 Max: 1
Detail - Optional
Loop: POC Elements: 15

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify changes to a line item

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>				
POC01	350	Assigned Identification	М	AN	1/20	Used				
		Description: Alphanumeric characters ass	signed fo	r differer	ntiation within	a transaction set				
		User Note 1: Oshkosh will always send the	e PO Lin	e numbe	er in this elem	ent.				
POC02	670	Change or Response Type Code	M	ID	2/2	Must use				
		<b>Description:</b> Code specifying the type of o	change to	o the line	item					
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 29, Inc.	luded: 10	0)						
		Code Name								
		Al Add Additional Item(s) CA Changes To Line Items								
		DI Delete Item(s)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							
		MU (Multiple) For Unit Price Quantity Re								
		NC Concurrent Item (No Change)								
		PC Price Change PQ Unit Price/Quantity Change								
		QD Quantity Decrease								
		QI Quantity Increase								
		RS Reschedule								
POC03	330	Oughtitu Ordorod	_	<b>D</b>	1/15	Used				
1 0003	330	Quantity Ordered	0	R	1/13	OSCU				
1 0003	330	Description: Quantity ordered	O	ĸ	1/13	Oscu				
		Description: Quantity ordered User Note 1: Quantity may equal zero								
POC04	671	Description: Quantity ordered User Note 1: Quantity may equal zero Quantity Left to Receive	X	R	1/9	Used				
		Description: Quantity ordered User Note 1: Quantity may equal zero	X	R	1/9					
		Description: Quantity ordered User Note 1: Quantity may equal zero Quantity Left to Receive	X	R	1/9					
POC04	671	Description: Quantity ordered User Note 1: Quantity may equal zero Quantity Left to Receive Description: Quantity left to receive as qu	X alified by X	R / the unit Comp	1/9 of measure	Used Used				
POC04	671 C001	Description: Quantity ordered User Note 1: Quantity may equal zero Quantity Left to Receive Description: Quantity left to receive as quantity Left to Measure Description: To identify a composite unit of	X alified by X	R / the unit Comp	1/9 of measure	Used Used				
POC04	671 C001	Description: Quantity ordered User Note 1: Quantity may equal zero Quantity Left to Receive Description: Quantity left to receive as quantity	X alified by X of measu M which a	R / the unit Comp ure(See F ID // value is b	1/9 of measure Figures Apper 2/2	Used Used ndix for examples Must use				
POC04	671 C001	Description: Quantity ordered User Note 1: Quantity may equal zero Quantity Left to Receive Description: Quantity left to receive as quantity	X alified by X of measu M which a	R / the unit Comp ure(See F ID // value is b	1/9 of measure Figures Apper 2/2	Used Used ndix for examples Must use				
POC05 POC05-0	671 C001	Description: Quantity ordered User Note 1: Quantity may equal zero Quantity Left to Receive Description: Quantity left to receive as quantity	X alified by X of measu M which a v	R the unit Comp ure(See F ID value is t : <b>794)</b> R	1/9 for measure Figures Apper 2/2 peing express 1/17	Used Used  dix for examples  Must use ed, or manner in				
POC05 POC05-0	671 C001	Description: Quantity ordered User Note 1: Quantity may equal zero Quantity Left to Receive Description: Quantity left to receive as quantity	X alified by X of measu M which a v	R the unit Comp ure(See F ID value is t : <b>794)</b> R	1/9 for measure Figures Apper 2/2 peing express 1/17	Used Used  dix for examples  Must use ed, or manner in				
POC05 POC05-0	671 C001 1 355 212	Description: Quantity ordered User Note 1: Quantity may equal zero Quantity Left to Receive Description: Quantity left to receive as quantity	X alified by X of measu M which a v I Codes X vice, cor	R / the unit Comp ure(See I ID value is t : 794) R mmodity, ID	1/9 for of measure Figures Apper 2/2 peing express 1/17 etc. 2/2	Used  Used  Idix for examples  Must use  ed, or manner in  Used				

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 91, Inclu  Code Name  AP Advise Price  CP Current Price (Subject to Change)  CT Contract  NC No Charge  NE Not to Exceed  NQ No Quote  TC Contract Price per Hundred  TE Contract Price per Each  TM Contract Price per Thousand	uded: 9)			
POC08	235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/2	Used
<ul><li>Description: Code identifying the type/source of the descriptive number used in Product/Service ID (234)</li><li>CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 477, Included: 6)</li></ul>						d in
		CodeNameBPBuyer's Part NumberCLColorDRDrawing Revision NumberDVLocation CodePTPrint or DrawingVPVendor's (Seller's) Part Number				
POC09	234	Product/Service ID	X	AN	1/48	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Identifying number for a production of the proof of the	de for 9	additiona	l pairs of data ele	ements 235
POC10	235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/2	Used
		Description: Code identifying the type/sou Product/Service ID (234) All valid standard codes are used. (Total		-	ive number used	l in
POC11	234	Product/Service ID	Х	AN	1/48	Used
		Description: Identifying number for a production	uct or se	ervice		
POC12	235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/2	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying the type/sou Product/Service ID (234) <b>All valid standard codes are used. (Total</b>		-	ive number used	d in
POC13	234	Product/Service ID	Х	AN	1/48	Used
		Description: Identifying number for a produ	uct or se	ervice		
POC14	235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	Х	ID	2/2	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying the type/sou Product/Service ID (234)	rce of th	e descript	ive number used	d in

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name All valid standard codes are used. (Tota	<u>Req</u> Il Codes	<u>Type</u> : 477)	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>	
POC15	234	Product/Service ID	Х	AN	1/48	Used	
		Description: Identifying number for a product or service					

## **PO4** Item Physical Details

Pos: 090 Max: >1

Detail - Optional

Loop: POC Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the physical qualities, packaging, weights, and dimensions relating to the item

#### **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
PO401	356	Pack	0	N0	1/6	Used

**Description:** The number of inner containers, or number of eaches if there are no inner containers, per outer container

## **REF** Reference Identification

Pos: 100 Max: >1
Detail - Optional
Loop: POC Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify identifying information

<u>Ref</u> REF01	<u>ld</u> 128	Element Name Reference Identification Qualifier	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 2/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use		
		Description: Code qualifying the Reference Identification						
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 1503, Ir Code Name RS Returnable Container Serial Number		: 1)				
REF02	127	Reference Identification	Х	AN	1/30	Used		
		<b>Description:</b> Reference information as defined for a particular Transaction Set or as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier						
REF03	352	Description	Х	AN	1/80	Used		
		Description: A free-form description to cla	rify the	related da	ata elements a	nd their content		
REF04	C040	Reference Identifier	Ο	Comp		Used		
		<b>Description:</b> To identify one or more refere specified by the Reference Qualifier	ence nu	mbers or	identification n	umbers as		
REF04-01	128	Reference Identification Qualifier	М	ID	2/3	Must use		
		Description: Code qualifying the Reference	e Identi	fication				
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 1503, In Code Name ZZ Mutually Defined	ncluded	: 1)				
REF04-02	127	Reference Identification	М	AN	1/30	Must use		
	<b>Description:</b> Reference information as defined for a particular Transaction Set or as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier							

## **MSG** Message Text

Pos: 292 Max: >1 Detail - Optional Loop: POC Elements: 3

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To provide a free-form format that allows the transmission of text information

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
MSG01	933	Free-Form Message Text	М	AN	1/264	Must use
		Description: Free-form message text				
MSG02	934	Printer Carriage Control Code	Χ	ID	2/2	Used
		Description: A field to be used for the condal valid standard codes are used. (Total			ed of the receive	ving printer
MSG03	1470	Number	0	N0	1/9	Used

## **SCH** Line Item Schedule

Pos: 295 Max: 1
Detail - Optional
Loop: SCH Elements: 12

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the data for scheduling a specific line-item

Ref SCH01	<u>ld</u> 380	Element Name Quantity	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> R	Min/Max 1/15	<u>Usage</u> Must use			
		Description: Numeric value of quantity							
SCH02	355	Unit or Basis for Measurement Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use			
		<b>Description:</b> Code specifying the units in which a value is being expressed, or manner in which a measurement has been taken <b>All valid standard codes are used. (Total Codes: 794)</b>							
SCH03	98	Entity Identifier Code	0	ID	2/3	Used			
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying an organizational entity, a physical location, property or an individual							
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 1312, In Code Name ST Ship To	ncluded:	: 1)					
SCH04	93	Name	Χ	AN	1/60	Used			
		Description: Free-form name							
SCH05	374	Date/Time Qualifier	М	ID	3/3	Must use			
		<b>Description:</b> Code specifying type of date	or time,	or both	date and time				
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 1112, In Code Name  002 Delivery Requested  106 Required By	ncluded:	: 2)					
SCH06	373	Date	М	DT	8/8	Must use			
		<b>Description:</b> Date expressed as CCYYMM	1DD						
SCH07	337	Time	0	TM	4/8	Used			
		<b>Description:</b> Time expressed in 24-hour of HHMMSSD, or HHMMSSDD, where H = hot seconds (00-59) and DD = decimal second = tenths (0-9) and DD = hundredths (00-99)	ours (00- ls; decim	-23), M =	minutes (00-5	9), S = integer			
SCH08	374	Date/Time Qualifier	X	ID	3/3	Used			
		Description: Code specifying type of date All valid standard codes are used. (Tota			date and time				
SCH09	373	Date	X	DT	8/8	Used			
		Description: Date expressed as CCYYMM	IDD						

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
SCH10	337	Time	X	TM	4/8	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Time expressed in 24-hour cl HHMMSSD, or HHMMSSDD, where H = ho seconds (00-59) and DD = decimal second = tenths (0-9) and DD = hundredths (00-99)	ours (00 s; decin	-23), M =	minutes (00-59	), S = integer
SCH11	326	Request Reference Number	0	AN	1/45	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Reference number or RFQ no set and query (additional reference number number)			, ,	
SCH12	350	Assigned Identification	М	AN	1/20	Used
		Description: Alphanumeric characters ass	igned fo	r differer	ntiation within a	transaction set
		User Note 1: Oshkosh will always require	the Item	Line nui	mber in this eler	ment.

# **TD5** Carrier Details (Routing Sequence/Transit Time)

Pos: 305 Max: 12 Detail - Optional Loop: SCH Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the carrier and sequence of routing and provide transit time information

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
TD502	66	Identification Code Qualifier	Χ	ID	1/2	Used
		Description: Code designating the system Code (67) All valid standard codes are used. (Tota			structure used	for Identification
TD503	67	Identification Code	Х	AN	2/80	Used
		Description: Code identifying a party or of	her code	е		
TD510	732	Transit Time Direction Qualifier	0	ID	2/2	Used
		Description: Code specifying the value of	time use	ed to me	asure the trans	it time
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 10, Incl	uded: 2)	)		
		Code Name				
		WD Working Days (Excludes weekends	and hol	idays)		
		ZZ Mutually Defined				
TD511	733	Transit Time	Χ	R	1/4	Used
		Description: The numeric amount of trans	it time			

## N9 Reference Identification

Pos: 320 Max: 1
Detail - Optional
Loop: N9 Elements: 7

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To transmit identifying information as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

<u><b>Ref</b></u> N901	<u>ld</u> 128	Element Name Reference Identification Qualifier	<u>Req</u> M	<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 2/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use	
		Description: Code qualifying the Reference All valid standard codes are used. (Total					
N902	127	Reference Identification	Х	AN	1/30	Used	
		<b>Description:</b> Reference information as def specified by the Reference Identification Q		a particu	ılar Transactio	n Set or as	
N903	369	Free-form Description	Χ	AN	1/45	Used	
		Description: Free-form descriptive text					
N904	373	Date	0	DT	8/8	Used	
		Description: Date expressed as CCYYMM	1DD				
N905	337	Time	Χ	TM	4/8	Used	
		<b>Description:</b> Time expressed in 24-hour clock time as follows: HHMM, or HHMMSS, or HHMMSSD, or HHMMSSDD, where H = hours (00-23), M = minutes (00-59), S = integer seconds (00-59) and DD = decimal seconds; decimal seconds are expressed as follows: = tenths (0-9) and DD = hundredths (00-99)					
N906	623	Time Code	0	ID	2/2	Used	
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying the time. In Organization standard 8601, time can be s relation to Universal Time Coordinate (UTC are substituted by P and M in the codes the All valid standard codes are used. (Total	pecified (c) time; s (at follow	by a + or since + is	r - and an indic	cation in hours in	
N907	C040	Reference Identifier	0	Comp		Used	
		<b>Description:</b> To identify one or more referspecified by the Reference Qualifier	ence nu	mbers or	identification	numbers as	
N907-01	128	Reference Identification Qualifier	М	ID	2/3	Must use	
		Description: Code qualifying the Reference All valid standard codes are used. (Total					
N907-02	127	Reference Identification	М	AN	1/30	Must use	
		<b>Description:</b> Reference information as def specified by the Reference Identification Q		a particu	ılar Transactio	n Set or as	
N907-03	128	Reference Identification Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/3	Used	
		Description: Code qualifying the Reference All valid standard codes are used. (Total					

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N907-04	127	Reference Identification	Х	AN	1/30	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Reference information as def specified by the Reference Identification Qu		a particu	lar Transaction	Set or as
N907-05	128	Reference Identification Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/3	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Code qualifying the Reference All valid standard codes are used. (Total				
N907-06	127	Reference Identification	Х	AN	1/30	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Reference information as def specified by the Reference Identification Qu		a particu	lar Transaction	Set or as

## **MSG** Message Text

Pos: 330 Max: 1000 Detail - Optional Loop: N9 Elements: 3

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To provide a free-form format that allows the transmission of text information

## **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
MSG01	933	Free-Form Message Text	М	AN	1/264	Must use
		Description: Free-form message text				
MSG02	934	Printer Carriage Control Code	Χ	ID	2/2	Used
		Description: A field to be used for the condal valid standard codes are used. (Total			ed of the receive	ving printer
MSG03	1470	Number	0	N0	1/9	Used

**Description:** A generic number

## N1 Name

Pos: 340 Max: 1 Detail - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 6

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To identify a party by type of organization, name, and code

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N101	98	Entity Identifier Code	M	ID	2/3	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying an organizat individual	ional er	ntity, a ph	ysical location,	property or an
		CodeList Summary (Total Codes: 1312, Ir	cluded:	8)		
		Code Name				
		16 Plant				
		BT Bill-to-Party				
		BY Buying Party (Purchaser)	لمملمما			
		MA Party for whom Item is Ultimately Int SE Selling Party	enaea			
		SF Ship From				
		ST Ship To				
		SU Supplier/Manufacturer				
N102	93	Name	Х	AN	1/60	Used
		Description: Free-form name				
N103	66	Identification Code Qualifier	Х	ID	1/2	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Code designating the system Code (67)	/method	d of code	structure used	for Identification
		All valid standard codes are used. (Total	Codes	: 215)		
N104	67	Identification Code	Х	AN	2/80	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying a party or other	ner cod	е		
N105	706	Entity Relationship Code	0	ID	2/2	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Code describing entity relation All valid standard codes are used. (Total	-	: 96)		
N106	98	Entity Identifier Code	0	ID	2/3	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying an organizatindividual <b>All valid standard codes are used. (Total</b>			ysical location,	property or an

## **N2** Additional Name Information

Pos: 350 Max: 2 Detail - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify additional names or those longer than 35 characters in length

**Description:** Free-form name

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N201	93	Name	M	AN	1/60	Must use
		Description: Free-form name				
N202	93	Name	0	AN	1/60	Used

## **N3** Address Information

Pos: 360 Max: 2
Detail - Optional
Loop: N1 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the location of the named party

## **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N301	166	Address Information	M	AN	1/55	Must use
		Description: Address information				
N302	166	Address Information	0	AN	1/55	Used

**Description:** Address information

## **N4** Geographic Location

Pos: 370 Max: 1
Detail - Optional
Loop: N1 Elements: 6

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To specify the geographic place of the named party

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N401	19	City Name	0	AN	2/30	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Free-form text for city name				
N402	156	State or Province Code	Ο	ID	2/2	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Code (Standard State/Provin agency	ce) as c	lefined by	y appropriate go	overnment
N403	116	Postal Code	0	ID	3/15	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Code defining international p blanks (zip code for United States)	ostal zo	ne code	excluding punc	tuation and
N404	26	Country Code	0	ID	2/3	Used
		<b>Description:</b> Code identifying the country				
N405	309	Location Qualifier	Χ	ID	1/2	Used
		Description: Code identifying type of locate All valid standard codes are used. (Total		: 172)		
N406	310	Location Identifier	Ο	AN	1/30	Used
		Description: Code which identifies a spec	ific locat	ion		

## **CTT** Transaction Totals

Pos: 010 Max: 1 Summary - Optional Loop: CTT Elements: 7

User Option (Usage): Used

Purpose: To transmit a hash total for a specific element in the transaction set

## **Element Summary:**

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
CTT01	354	Number of Line Items	М	N0	1/6	Must use

Description: Total number of line items in the transaction set

## SE Transaction Set Trailer

Pos: 030 Max: 1 Summary - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

**Purpose:** To indicate the end of the transaction set and provide the count of the transmitted segments (including the beginning (ST) and ending (SE) segments)

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
SE01	96	Number of Included Segments	М	N0	1/10	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Total number of segments in segments	cluded ii	n a trans	action set inclu	ding ST and SE
SE02	329	Transaction Set Control Number	М	AN	4/9	Must use
		<b>Description:</b> Identifying control number the functional group assigned by the originator				nsaction set